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Fincastle History Is Presented
Chacrles McGaughey Read Narrative At 0Old Church Home-coming.

Church has had an important place in the life o
community.,

L]

the Putnam countcy

AE Ethe recent home=coming of former members of the Pincastle
Churches, a fine historical narrative was presented by Charles McGaughey
of Greencastle, a decendant himself of Fincastle family, the material for
the paper having been assembled DY Miss Bee Cunningham, of Fincastle. The
narcative in full was as follows:

Looking Back

"God gave his children memories," wrote Studdert Kennedy; "that in
Life's Garden there might be June roses in December." Mocst of us have
priceless memories of some of our grayheaded church pioneers: but only
one of us now living, Mr. Harmon Brothers:, can carcy back to the early
days when the first church was founded in Fincastle. An old Church Record
oegins; "Mames o. the members of the Church of Chri=c At Fincastls,
Putnam County, Indiana, organized on Saturday before the second Lord's Day
in July A. D. 1854" a list of forty nine names follows that probably
includes the charter members since no comment follows their names as
whether they came in by letter or immersicn. BY Cthe close of 1856 the
lis carried more than one hundred names and Ehe gquestion 2f shurch house
jeéems Lo have come up for the following notice appeared in three issues of
:he Putnam Republican Banner:

“Notice ia hereby given that there Wwill be a meeting of the members
of the Church of Christ at thHe Meeting House in Pincaatle, Putnam cCounty,
Indiana on Saturday April eleventh, Eighteen hundred fifcy seven at two
o'clock P.M. for the purpose of electing trustees for said church. Dated
darch 23th. Signed: W. W. Mills, Elder.”

What was this meeting house mentiocned in the notice? MNo one seams to
know, but it is supposed that the church met in homes of its members as
did most of our early churches. In Truth: "The Gloves were God's first
Temples®™ here and many of us have heen told of the early Locust grave
gatherings which Uncle Harmon vividly recalls as once interrupted by the
excitement of the shooting of an eagle. The election of trustees was held
as advertized and Robert M. Brothers clerk declared W. MIlls, Jordon
Grider, and Shelton Allen Elected Trustees of the Church of Christ at
Fincastle.

On April 20, Wm. H. Shields; Recorder of Putnam County, recorded this
election in Miscellaneous record No. 1 on page 34, fee 30 cents.

The church was now organized ready to transact business, and on July
4. 1857:; Jacob Hartman transferred to the Crustees for the nominal sum of
tén dellars a certain bit of real estate carefully stated as toc meets and
bounds, in section township and range and duly acknowledge before John
eaton, Justice of the Peace. The deed of conveyance was duly recorded
-ec. B, 1857 at 12 o'clock M. and a fee of 51.00 paid. One clause in this
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deed entitled Eo more Chan a passing notice: For the purpose of a House of
Christian Worship CEthereon to belong to and under the management of said

rusteas; but szald House to be open Lo any person £o preach in when not
.ccupied by its owners in worship. "There 1s no narrowness of wision here.

A monument in Hartman Cemetery bears thia inscription "Jacob Hartman died
June 5, 1863, age 684 years, three months, 27 days; ® But a far more lasting
memarial 128 the grant of this land.

The plot of land was large including the lot on which the telephone
exchange is built as well as the land still owned by the church but room
vwas needed in 1857, not only for Ethe building grounds but also for a
hitching lot. There Were "wagon days" and "hack days”". True there wvere
buggies and cutters, but these were used more for quick business trips by
the head of the houae, for pleasure jaunts by the young people and their
aveathearts, or drives when the whole family was not expected to go along.
Loock back toe your father's or grandfather's day and picture Ethe entir
family coming to church in a buggy! In most cases 1t would have been on
moere the storyof the old woman who lived in the shoe, six, eight. ten,
even twelwve children in a family was not uncommon then. The roomler hack
which some of you will remember with the canopy top and two seats, often
suffficed if some of the older boys and girls rode horseback and so eased
the load. The church buildinyg was probably built in 1858 as the derd was
recorded in Dec. 1857.

Who planned the structure and what hands helped we have no way of

knowing but it was probably partly at least a labor of lowve. It stood
surrounded by locust and a fence over which stiles were built on the front
nd on the south side. To these stiles drover Alexander Smith with chain

arness clanking; Lot Hinkle walked by aid of two canes all the way from
nis home where Earl Shannon now lives: and George D. Hactman perched on the
edge of the driver's seat and pushing on the lines;, as one expressed 1t
came with his wife, Jane Hinkle Hartman: many walked carrying their Sunday
boots or shoes until they were in sight of Fincastle, thus saving shoe
leather; others drove, others came on horseback; they came in many ways but
they came to this first church not occasionally but regularly each meeting
day. HRamp Creek Jjust west of the old bridge site served as the baptismal
~ool, and it served at all times in the year. Probably there are some here
today who were babtised when a hole had to be cut in the ice 30 that they
could 'be immersed in the cold water. We are told, however, of the babtism
of a sick man where every care was taken. A large watering trough hewn and
hollowed from a tree trunk was brought into the house and partly filled
with cold water but warmed with hot water from the iron kettle. In thls
the 3ick man was immersed without any 1ill effects. These are examples of
primitive conditions but alsc examples of loyalty and fervor of the church.

While the Church of Christ was getting firmly established ancther
religious group was growing up at Blakesburg = or Blakes-borough - as the
Putnam County History of 1887 names it. Here lived John Fosher, whose
parents we are told were the first settlers on Ramp Creek and gave it 1Ls
name, because of the many wild conions or ramps that grew along 4ES banks.
Here the father built a frame church which many of us remember a3 1t stood
in the midst of Blakesburg cemetery = a church free to all though
Fosher was a Universalist.

1
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Blakesburg grew up to be a thriving village with flour mill, saw mill,
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tannery., general store; sang factory and this church where a group of
Universalists and their riends worshiped during the sixties. In 1lB&71
under the leadership of Rev. William Wallace Curry, the group removed ta
‘incastle and built a church house that was the pride of the community.
"Elegant® i3 the term the 1879 historian uses in describing irt. And

beautiful it was and still is as it stands among the sheltering trees. Dr.
Logan Stanley and Charles B. Bridges are names that carry us back to the
erection of the church. The land was bought from Jaccb Cord and who of us
have not heard stories of Uncle Jake and Aunt Betsy Cord: cthose
entertaining characters of pioneer days. Only the best was good enough for

this house of the Lord and zealous hands worked with the building. Reese
Trail carried the bricks for its construction and counted them one by one
s¢ that in later days he could say: There are =20 many bricks in the
Universalist Church." Again we wish that we could remember the number as

he gave it over and over again.

Many gifts came to help with the furnishings. The clock here on the
wall was the gift of A. R. Brattain of Greencastle who was knovn throughout
the state for the excellence of his wares. The clock is proof of their
enduring gquality. Charles B. Bridge gave the organ that formerly stood in
the alcove here where the old time things are on display. The organ was of
unusual construction simulating a pipe organ with its gilded pipes, and was
long used here in the churech. Most nighly prized of all gifts i3 the
pulpit on which the 2ld Bibkle rests. It was the work of the hands of W. W.
Curry who was a cabinet maker as well as a preacher. It was a peraonal

1Et to the church he organized and as long as the pulpit scanda ic will
symbolize his loving interest and shepherding care.

The Christian Church was led for A time by member preachers such men
as Joel Ridge,; Ezekiel Wright and Joe Davis but Oliver P. Badger scon came
e it as a man 1in his prime and led it and melded it as did none other all

the days of his life. The fathers of our two churches were W. W. Curry and
Oliver P. Badger, both men of ability of each of whom it has been truly
said: "There was none better in the brotherhood." Beoth like Paul, loved
their flocks and came back again and again when Fincastle needed their
helpful messages. Both claimed Kentucky as his native state, but both

worked long in Indiana. Both were men of affaris as well as able preachers
and served their countrys in different fields of endeavor.

Here the likeness ends, Brother Badger was a member of th
Constitutional Convention of 1851, and was defeated the next vyear for th
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state Senate,; but Brother Curry figured long in the political weorld as a
member of the staff of Governor Oliver P. Morton, as Secretary of State of
Indiana, and as an important worker in the United States Pension Bureau for

many years.

Brother Badger was the kindly: fatherly, much loved leader who was at
home with any of his people - one who would humorously answer an anxious
housewife's gquestion as to what he wished to drink with: "just a glass of
milk, but spill a little cream in it laughter, spill a little cream in it."
Brother <Curcy felt the dignity and responsibility of his calling as a
minister of the gospel and lacked the human touch of a later dearly beloved
pastor, Rev. T. 8. Guthrie. Mrs. Betty Cooper relates that her brother
Charlie once dJdrove Bro. Curcy to Greencastle and driving to Greencastle
Ehen with horse and buggy was not the few minutes drive that 1t 15 Coday.
Brother Curry sat stiffly silent, uttering not a single word until they
passed a drove of hogas near the end of the journey, when he cemarked: © A




nice drove of hogs," Charlie agreed and that finished the conversation faor
the entire trip. Preed from his ministarial dignity, however, he was a man
of fire and humor in his pelitical speeches. W. W. Currcy and Oliver pP.
Badger are household names in Fincastle, names Ehat are ctied up with
memories of church memberships, marriages, and deaths. We are proud of our
heritage as well we may be for few churches can equal, much less surpass
what we have had here.

The list of charter members of the Universalist church begins with the
names of Charles and Rachel Bridges, John and Elizabeth Grider and
Christian and Emily Fosher head the list of the Christian Church, and the

family names are repeated again and again in the later records:

Bridges Fosher, Shannon, Stanley, William, Brothers, Crodian, James,
Pope, Stultz, Trail Todd, Walker and many others in the V. V. list. Fr
the Christian Chureh - Grider, Fosher, McGaughey, Hinkle Guilliams, Goslin,
Turner, Brothers Hartman, Thompson, Shuee and on and on through long lists
for the early churches held no small memberships. Preaching services were
held on diffrent Sundays of the month sc that the Ewo groups could and did
dttend many meetings in both churches. Entrance to each chureh was made
through one of Ewe doors - the men entering in one door and seating
themselves cn the men's side and the women and small children taking the
other entrance seating themselves on the other side of the partition. Many
were the giggles from the young people when someone mistakenly entered the
wrong deoor. The churches were well filled at all times, but during
protracted meetings or the August meetings, the crowds cverflowved the pews
and the small children sat in a row on the edge of the platform about the
pulpit. We who are sitting on these same hard benches today are apt ko
feel that the children had the best of it. The church fathers must have
thought so too, for in the old church are 12 arm chairs ss comfortable that
they are the Jjoy of the women who meet there to sew, and thase were bought
by the older men of the church. The chairs were not so numerocus in the
brick church, but who does not know the roomy chair firse cccupied by Uncle
Bridges and later used by Uncle Robert as he superintended the 3Sunday
Schoel through long years of service.

Hard or not the seats were filled both for church and Sunday school.
An old record lists the Sunday school classes as the lst, 2nd, 3rd male
classes and the 1lst, 2nd, 3rd female classes with enly the infant class
showing a mixture of male and female names. We may be inclined to smile at

this until we note the attendance of 80 or 100 or seven more at times. The
classes needed elbow room but they learned their Bible lessons and sang
lustily the old songs. We would give much to have today a sound record of
the tuning fork and Uncle Zack Grider's tenor woice as it led in song in
the old church, or be able to hear Judson Lindley and the organ in the
brick church. That Fincastle sang well is not boast of lacal pride. The
golden notes of Carrie Turner Grider's voice could have made her a career

woman, if she had not been so faithful wife and mother: and the Stanley's
Bridges, Griders, Turners and Goslins as well as other families in the
churches have handed down their love of musiec to our present leaders in
song.

IN this brief survey of the early history of these two churches we
cannot take the time to tell of the Singing Schoeols of the early days, the
itravbercy festivals in June each year, of the rousing protracted meetings
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at various times, of the anniversary meetings on the third Sunday in
August, and many more community activities enjoyed in those earlier days.

Four names we must mention - four preachers who went sut from thesze
churches, Jasper Shuey and Jesse Fosher have finished their ministry years
ago and gone to their eternal rewvard, Q. W. McGaughey a much vounger man
18 living and preaching the gospel at Veedersburgh. He began his ministey
at the Efamous Sixth Christian church at Indianapolis, help pastorates arc
Central Christian Church at Columbus, Indiana, at Everett Washington and
Covington, Indiana. G. 5. McGaughey and an older brother. held pastoraktes
At Indianapolis, Bicknell Linten, Ropinson, Illinois and at 5t. Paul. pue
to declining health his active work in the pulpit has almost ceased. AC
the present time he resides at Roachdale: is chairman of the beard of the
Christian Church at Roachdale Pastor of the community church at
Carpentersville.

A3 the years have sped by the charter members have all been called
home . Jorden Grider of the Church of Christ ang Clay Fosher of the
Universaliat Church being the last to leave us. The succeeding
generations about Fincastle have married and intermarried until many of us
remember dear old locved ones in the Universalist chureK and in the
Christian church until both churches hold dear associations: Babtists,
Methodists, United Brethren, Fresbyterians, and those of ather
communicationa have moved into the neighborhood to strengthen ocur family
forces, so that today we are often led in gong by a Universalist, a member
of the Christian church at the piano, a Presbyterian as the most loyal
vorker among the men: and we all sit peacably together in the pew and
Llisten te a Methodist preach to us and enjoy it. This co-operation has
seen further strengthened by Joining the working forces of the Etwe
churches in what is known as the Community Circle, a plan adopted Februarcy
14, 1916.

However, each church keeps its own identity with its own name and its
own officers - Lyda Bridges, Marion Borden and Hazel Darnell as the last
named officers of the Universalist church and Margaret Grider, Laura
Bridges and Eva Obenchain as the last elected trustees of the Chriscian
churcch. The name as well as the Faith of Our Fathers are cacrring en. We
have -inherited their trees, their buildings and their lands. We have
inherited their lives of faith and fervent devotian: and if we but listen
Wwe may hear their voices speaking to us Eoday in an appeal for greater
things to be done in Fincastle community in the name of the Leord and
Haster of us all.

This history has been collected from old recocds, church lists,
Sunday School reports, county records, remembered events and handed down
stories, of the churech and community life of the pioneers vwho sought God
and right relationship with his fellowman in this particular community.




